
  
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
  
2. MINUTES

 2.a. Consideration of the minutes from the February 8, 2023 Plan Commission meeting
 Attachment
  
3. PUBLIC HEARINGS

 3.a. Consideration of Resolution 2023-010 approving a Conditional Use Permit to allow an
office use in a M-2, General Manufacturing District, for the properties located at 3 ABC
Drive and 6 ABC Parkway

 Attachment

 3.b. Consideration of Resolution 2023-009 denying an exception to Section 30.17(2)(b)(4) of
the Outdoor Sign Regulations for the property located at 1221 Henry Avenue

 Attachment
  
4. REPORTS

 4.a. Consideration of Resolution 2023-008 approving a three-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM)
for the properties located at 3 ABC Drive, 4 ABC Drive, and 6 ABC Parkway

 Attachment
  
5. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS

Slum Clearance - 80-100 East Grand Avenue
Comprehensive Plan Amendment - 1118 Garfield Avenue
Planned Unit Development - 1407 Liberty Avenue, 1112 and 1118 Garfield Avenue
Zoning Map Amendment - 1407 Liberty Avenue, 1112 and 1118 Garfield Avenue

  
6. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Extraterritorial Plat - Afton Road
Conditional Use Permit - Outdoor Seating Area - Dairy Queen - 1023 Pleasant Street
Planned Unit Development - 1800 Gateway Boulevard - Northstar
Zoning Map Amendment - 1800 Gateway Boulevard - Northstar

  
7. ADJOURNMENT

PUBLIC NOTICE & AGENDA
BELOIT PLAN COMMISSION

City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511
7:00 PM 

Wednesday, February 22, 2023

 

 

 

 

 Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - February 22, 2023

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1797224/02-08-2023_Plan_Commission_minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1799794/CU-2023-01__3_ABC_Drive___6_ABC_Pkwy_Office_use_in_M-2_-_Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1798569/SOE-2023-02__Head_Start__1221_Henry_Ave_-_Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1794626/CSM-2023-04__3_ABC_Drive___6_ABC_Pkwy-Final.pdf


** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs
of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service, please
contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

 

 Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - February 22, 2023

2



 

1 | P a g e  
 

MINUTES 
PLAN COMMISSION 

City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 
7:00 PM 

Wednesday, February 8, 2022 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
Vice-Chairperson Ramsden called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. Commissioners Ramsden, 
Flesch, Janke, Jacobsen, Anderson, Toral, Elliot, and Councilor Dunkin were present.  

 
2. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 

2.a. Election of Chairperson 
Commissioner Jacobsen made a motion to nominate Commissioner Ramsden as 
Chairperson, seconded by Commissioner Janke. Motion prevailed, voice vote (7-0). 

 
2.b. Election of Vice-Chairperson 

Commissioner Janke made a motion to nominate Commissioner Anderson as Vice 
Chairperson, seconded by Commissioner Jacobsen. Motion prevailed, voice vote (7-0). 

 
3. MINUTES 

3.a. Consideration of the minutes of January 18, 2022 Plan Commission meeting 
Motion was made by Commissioner Anderson, seconded by Commissioner Flesch to 
approve the minutes. Motion prevailed, voice vote (7-0). 
    

4. REPORTS 
4.a. Consideration of Resolution 2023-005 approving a two-lot Certified Survey Map for the 

properties located at 1800 Gateway Boulevard and 1751 Apex Drive in the City of Beloit 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation.  

  
Commissioner Janke moved to approve the resolution for the two-lot CSM, seconded by 
Commissioner Anderson. Motion approved, voice vote (7-0).  

 
4.b. Consideration of Resolution 2023-006 approving a one-lot Extraterritorial Certified 

Survey Map for Parcel Number 6-2-60 in the Town of Beloit 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 

        
Commissioner Flesch moved to approved the resolution for the one-lot CSM, seconded by 
Commissioner Jacobsen. Motion approved, voice vote (7-0).  
 

3



 

2 | P a g e  
 

4.c. Consideration of Resolution 2023-007 approving a two-lot Extraterritorial Certified 
Survey Map for Parcel Number 6-2-2069.1 in the Town of Beloit 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 

 
Commissioner Anderson moved to approve the resolution for the two-lot CSM, seconded 
by Commissioner Flesch. Motion approved, voice vote (7-0). 

 
4.d. Consideration of a request to purchase the property located at 80-100 East Grand 

Avenue for slum clearance 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Chairperson Ramsden asked when the transfer of ownership will take place. Ms. 
Christensen said by May 1st, 2023, and demolition of the buildings are required to be 
completed by September 1, 2024. Chairperson Ramsden asked if the reason for the 
transfer is because Hendricks could not apply for the two grants, that only the municipality 
had to apply for it. Ms. Christensen indicated that was correct. 
 
Commissioner Janke said he wanted to compliment City staff, the City, and the developer. 
Commissioner Janke said this building has been sitting vacant for a long time, and it is great 
that there is a grant being provided by the state. 

 
Commissioner Flesch moved to approve the request for purchase of the property at 80-
100 East Grand Avenue, seconded by Commissioner Jacobsen. Motion approved, voice 
vote (7-0). 

 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

5.a. Consideration of Planned Unit Development (PUD) Master Land Use Plan for the 
property located at 625 Third St 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Flesch asked what would happen if the four-foot fence for the outdoor 
seating area was required to be increased in height by the Alcohol Beverage License 
Control Committee.  Ms. Christensen said it would be a minor change and could be 
approved by City staff.  
 
Chairperson Ramsden opened the public hearing. 
 
Rick Dexter, 604 Pleasant Street, said he was concerned about the potential for noise from 
the establishment at Heritage View.  Mr. Dexter said that he reviewed the noise ordinance, 
and he indicated that there are requirements related to live music. Mr. Dexter also said 
that the sign is too large and out of character for the property.   

4



 

3 | P a g e  
 

 
Joe Stadelman, 2431 E Ridge Rd, President of Angus Young Associates, Architect for the 
project, explained that this project will offer options for people after going out to dinner 
downtown or going to the Farmer’s Market.  He also indicated that there is not an offering 
like this in the community that attracts people for miles away. Mr. Stadelman said the 
rooftop feature is a sign but also functions as a piece of art. Mr. Stadelman said that they 
will follow the noise ordinance and continue to work on addressing this issue.   
 
Commissioner Elliot asked what they have in place to allow for a wide variety of music. 
Mr. Stadelman said that they are not the operators, and he cannot speak on behalf of 
them. Ms. Christensen said that Plan Commission does not have the ability to approve how 
the business operates related to something like music.  They have authority over liquor 
licenses, but otherwise, businesses have the ability to operate the business as they see fit.  
 
Commissioner Jacobsen asked how tall the building is, and how big the letters will be. Mr. 
Stadelman said that the outside wall is 30 feet tall, and the letters are 5 feet tall. Mr. 
Stadelman said the letters are a small percentage of the building height, and will be sitting 
on an 8-foot-high frame with LED neon strip inserted in.  Commissioner Flesch asked if the 
sign will be dusk to dawn. Mr. Stadelman said that it is on a timer and it can be dimmed, 
and it is not able to have auto-dimming.  
 
Commissioner Anderson asked how they test out the lighting. Mr. Stadelman said that 
they plan to have a sample letter constructed with the lighting in it, put it on the building, 
and see how it looks. Councilor Dunkin asked about the name for the business, and how 
does that fit in downtown. Mr. Stadelman said that the name for the sign on top of the 
building is the name of the first person to operate a bowling alley in downtown Beloit.  
 
Commissioner Toral asked if the noise will project off the wall or will the wall absorb the 
sound. Mr. Stadelman said the wall and windows are hard surfaces and will project sound 
off of them, and they are evaluating where to put the band so that the sound does not 
bounce off the walls.  
 
Chairperson Ramsden asked what they are doing with the art work that is currently on the 
outside walls.  Dan Barkes, Hendricks Commercial Properties, 525 Third Street, Beloit, said 
that the art work that will be removed from the current walls, and they will put them in 
storage and utilize them on the campus to the North once that gets completed. 
Chairperson Ramsden said he wants to see the art work be present somewhere. 
Commissioner Anderson asked if Beloit College was notified about this project. Ms. 
Christensen said they were not notified, as they will not be directly impacted by this 
project because they are further away.  
 
Commissioner Anderson said he will vote for the PUD and that the key issues were with 
the conditions 3, 5, and 6.  The proposed sign seems to be the big issue; off street parking 
was resolved; and the applicant will provide what is best for Beloit. 

5



 

4 | P a g e  
 

 
Chairperson Ramsden closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Flesch moved to approve the PUD, seconded by Commissioner Jacobsen. 
Motion approved, voice vote (7-0). 
 

5.b. Consideration of an Ordinance amending the Zoning District Map for the City of Beloit 
for the property located at 625 Third Street 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Chairperson Ramsden opened and closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Jacobsen moved to approve the amendment to the Zoning District Map for 
the property located at 625 Third Street, seconded by Commissioner Janke. Motion 
approved, voice vote (7-0). 

 
5.c. Consideration of Resolution 2023-004 approving an Exception to Section 30.46(3) and 

30.17(2)(b)(4) of the Sign Ordinance for the property located at 345 East Grand Avenue 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Toral asked about the history of that part of the sidewalk. Ms. Christensen 
said that our photos only go back to 2002.  The sign has gotten smaller over time. 
Commissioner Janke asked if this is in the public right-of-way. Ms. Christensen said that it 
is not in the right-of-way.    
 
Chairperson Ramsden opened public hearing. 
 
Ryan Coffey, 1 Parker Place, Janesville, Wisconsin, works with Elevated Identity wanted 
Ms. Christensen to elaborate on the enforcement of the EVM sign regulations. Ms. 
Christensen said when staff approved the EVM signs, they did not apply the definition of 
height in the Sign Ordinance.  It says the height of EVM signs cannot be higher than 4 feet, 
and height is measured from grade.  Ms. Christensen said that they came across this 
misinterpretation of the Ordinance last year, and now, staff is correctly enforcing the Sign 
Ordinance.  
 
Mr. Coffey asked how many exceptions have been granted to the EVM standards because 
the Carom Sign was just installed.  Ms. Christensen said that is how they found out that it 
was not enforced correctly. On a going forward basis, we will be enforcing the ordinance 
as it is written. Mr. Coffey said that all they are asking to do is to switch out what is 
currently there, like for like.  Commissioner Toral asked what data does Mr. Coffey have 
to prove that this a case for hardship. 
 

6



 

5 | P a g e  
 

Theresa Wendhousen, 345 East Grand Avenue, representing First National Bank and Trust 
from the marketing department, stated that they are not able to get replacement parts 
for the sign so a lot of the lights are not lit all the time. Ms. Wendhousen said replacing 
the sign will improve Downtown Beloit and help draw more business to downtown.  
 
Commissioner Toral said that without data, he cannot support the exception.  He said that 
Plan Commission has been consistent on their denials of exception, and he intends to vote 
against this one as well.   
 
Ms. Wendhousen said the monument sign has been there for over fifty years. 
Commissioner Flesch asked if the sign they are proposing is a video sign displaying time, 
date, and temperature. Mr. Coffey said it has video capability with a steady message. Ms. 
Christensen said that she does not think that they are going to just display time, 
temperature and date, that First National is put messages on there as well. Mr. Coffey said 
that this is much smaller in scale than the EVM’s in the City of Beloit, and it will have 
messages.  
 
Commissioner Jacobsen said that years back when the sign got updated with color for the 
bank and there was not an electric sign on top of it, and the community was mad about 
that. Commissioner Jacobsen said it did not have time and date on the sign back then. Mr. 
Coffey asked how many signs have come to Plan Commission and have been denied. 
Chairperson Ramsden said that Plan Commission tries to be consistent when they review 
exceptions, and not many have been received since we modified the ordinance a few years 
ago.    
 
Ms. Christensen said that those exceptions were not EVM signs, and most of the sign 
exceptions were for having a larger secondary sign. Ms. Christensen stated that the 
Commission modified the Sign Ordinance to allow bonuses and more flexibility in design. 
Mr. Coffey indicated that he wanted Ms. Christensen to describe what the code says for 
EVM signs. Ms. Christensen said that date and time is a type of EVM sign, and then there 
are standard ones that are not date and time. Mr. Coffey asked if date and time had any 
height restriction. Ms. Christensen said it just does not have the four-foot height 
restriction.  
 
Chairperson Ramsden closed the public hearing. 
 
Council Dunkin asked if the applicant can come back later with a hardship argument. Ms. 
Christensen said if Plan Commission denies their sign, they can appeal to City Council.  
 
Commissioner Janke moved to deny the Resolution approving an Exception to the Sign 
Ordinance, seconded by Commissioner Flesch. Motion approved, roll call vote (7-0). 

 
6. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS 

There were no updates provided. 

7



 

6 | P a g e  
 

 
7. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

Julie Christensen outlined the future agenda items. 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
Commissioner Flesch moved to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Commissioner Janke at 
8:49PM.   Motion carried, voice vote (7-0). 
 
 

  
Mike Ramsden, Chairperson 

8



REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  February 22, 2023 

Agenda Item:  3.a. 

File Number:  CU-2023-01 

 
General Information 
 
Applicant:  Michelle DuPont, Eppstein Uhen Architects (EUA) 
 
Owner:  American Builders and Contractors Supply Company, Inc. (ABC Supply)  
 
Address/Location:  3 ABC Drive, 4 ABC Drive and 6 ABC Parkway (future 1300 Prince Hall Drive) 
 
Applicant’s Request: The applicant has applied for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow an 
office use in the M-2, General Manufacturing District, for the properties located at 3 ABC Drive, 
4 ABC Drive and 6 ABC Parkway. 
 
Background 
The applicant has proposed the construction of a 29,474 square foot training facility for ABC 
Supply. A CSM has also been created to reconfigure the lot lines for this development and is the 
subject of a separate application for Plan Commission review. The Zoning Ordinance states office 
uses in the M-2, General Manufacturing District are only allowed if reviewed and approved in 
accordance with the CUP review procedures.  
 
Staff Analysis 
 
Existing Conditions:  The subject area on 3 ABC Drive, 4 ABC Drive, and 6 ABC Parkway is currently 
vacant land and surface parking with road frontage along Prince Hall Drive.  
 
Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  The subject area is surrounded by M-2, General 
Manufacturing zoning with warehouse and manufacturing uses related to ABC Supply (see 
attached Zoning Map).  
 
Proposed Office Use:  The applicant is requesting an office use to construct a training facility for 
ABC Supply Co., Inc., to bring existing staff from various locations around the county to Beloit for 
leadership training. Out of town trainees will be shuttled from hotels in the area. Parking for the 
new building will be shared with the existing office building at 3 ABC Drive.  Fourteen offices for 
permanent employees will also be located in the new facility.  
 

9



Review Agent Comments: The application was sent to the City’s review agents, and they had no 
comments.  
 
All property owners within 150 feet of the subject property are owned by the applicant (ABC 
Supply), and so notices were not mailed. A notice of the public hearing was published in the Beloit 
Daily News and on the City’s website.   
 
City of Beloit Comprehensive and Strategic Plan:  The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use 
Map recommends General Industrial uses; this land use category is intended to facilitate 
manufacturing, warehousing, and distribution land uses with controlled outdoor storage area, 
moderate landscaping and signage. This request and the underlying zoning classification are 
consistent with this recommendation. 
 
Municipal Utilities:  The subject property receives the full range of municipal services. 
   
Findings of Fact: Based on Section 2-504 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall 
make a recommendation based on the following considerations: 

a. Whether the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the conditional use will be 
detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare; 
• The addition of the training facility is not expected to have any detrimental impacts 

to the general area and will be beneficial to the manufacturing and warehousing 
activities occurring around the property.   

b. Whether the conditional use will be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property 
in the immediate vicinity for purposes already permitted; 
• Surrounding properties are owned by ABC Supply and zoned M-2, General 

Manufacturing. The added office use would be compatible with the adjacent ABC 
Supply office building to the south.  

c. Whether the conditional use will substantially diminish or impair property values within 
the neighborhood of the subject property; 
• The construction of a new building would require architectural and landscaping 

standards to be met, thereby improving the existing conditions and creating a positive 
impact.  It will also increase property values on the ABC Supply campus by adding a 
new facility on the property.  

d. Whether the establishment of the conditional use will impede the normal and orderly 
development and improvement of the surrounding property; 
• The surrounding area is fully developed.  

e. Whether the exterior architectural design or site layout of the proposed conditional use is 
so dissimilar or otherwise incompatible with existing or proposed development in the 
immediate neighborhood that it will cause a depreciation in property values; 
• Brick veneer and metal paneling are proposed exterior materials for the new building, 

and both are acceptable for the manufacturing district and compatible with the 
adjacent properties.   Site and architectural plans will be reviewed further by staff 
during Architectural Review, if the conditional use is approved. 

10



f. Whether adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities will be 
available to serve the proposed use at the time of its occupancy or use; 
• Adequate facilities and infrastructure are available to serve the proposed use. 

g. Whether adequate measures will be taken to minimize traffic congestion; and  
• Per Section 8-103 of the Zoning Code, Office uses are required to provide 1 parking 

space per 250 square feet. 118 off-street parking spaces are required for the 29,474 
square-foot building. The site plan identifies 144 stalls, exceeding the minimum 
standards. This standard is met by reconfiguring the existing lot lines to include 
parking spaces that are allocated for the four-story office building to the south at 3 
ABC Drive. An updated off-street parking plan for the ABC Campus must be submitted 
and reviewed during site plan review to ensure adequate parking throughout the ABC 
Supply campus.  

h. Whether the conditional use will comply with all applicable regulations of the Zoning 
Ordinance. 
• The applicant will comply with all other applicable regulations of the Zoning 

Ordinance. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of a Conditional Use Permit to 
allow an office use in the M-2, General Manufacturing District, for the properties located at 3 
ABC Drive, 4 ABC Drive and 6 ABC Parkway, based on the above Findings of Fact and subject to 
the following conditions: 

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes an office use in a M-2, General Manufacturing 
District as shown in the attached application. 

2. The applicant shall enter into a Development Agreement with the City of Beloit.  The 
Development Agreement shall outline the applicant’s responsibilities with respect to 
abandoning, relocating, extending, and/or constructing public facilities and infrastructure 
as necessary to accommodate this project. 

3. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by 
the Plan Commission and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The 
Community Development Director may approve minor changes administratively. 

 
Ordinance Requirements: 
In addition to the above permit conditions, the following provisions of existing City Ordinances 
shall apply: 

1. The applicant shall obtain an Architectural Review Certificate, Certificate of Zoning 
Compliance, and Building Permit prior to beginning construction. 

2. In accordance with Section 8-103 of the Zoning Ordinance, the applicant shall provide 
access to at least one off-street parking stall per 250 square feet of office space. An 
updated off-street parking plan for the ABC Campus must be submitted and reviewed 
during site plan review to ensure adequate parking throughout the ABC Supply campus. 

3. In accordance with Section 2-506 of the Zoning Ordinance, the applicant shall have twelve 
(12) months from the date of CUP approval to secure a Building Permit to carry out the 
proposed improvements or the CUP shall lapse and be of no further effect. 

11



ATTACHMENTS:  CUP Decision Form, Zoning Map, Location Map, Photos, Renderings, Floor 
Plan, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List.

12



Beloit Plan Commission 
Conditional Use Permit Decision Form 

 
When reviewing an application for a conditional use, the local government must look to the requirements 
and conditions found in the local zoning ordinance and determine if the applicant meets those 
requirements and conditions.  The local government must provide substantial evidence supporting their 
decision to grant or deny the permit, and to impose additional conditions on the permit.  Substantial 
evidence means facts and information, directly relating to the requirements and conditions, that a 
reasonable person would accept in support of a conclusion.  Personal preferences and speculation are not 
sufficient forms of evidence.  All requirements and conditions imposed by the local government must be 
reasonable, and to the extent, practicable, measurable. 
 
Ordinance Requirements 
 
List ordinance requirements related to the conditional use permit: 
 
1. The applicant shall obtain an Architectural Review Certificate, Certificate of Zoning Compliance, and 

Building Permit prior to beginning construction. 
Substantial Evidence:  These procedural requirements are contained in the City of Beloit Architectural 
Review and Landscape Code, Zoning Ordinance, and Building Code. 
 

2. In accordance with Section 8-103 of the Zoning Ordinance, the applicant shall provide access to at 
least one off-street parking stall per 250 square feet of office space.  
Substantial Evidence: This requirement ensures there is enough parking for the existing and proposed 
use. 

 
3. In accordance with Section 2-506 of the Zoning Ordinance, the applicant shall have twelve (12) months 

from the date of CUP issuance to secure a Building Permit to carry out the proposed 
improvements, or the CUP shall lapse and be of no further effect. 
Substantial Evidence:  This requirement encourages the applicant to proceed with construction of the 
approved improvements in a timely manner.   
 

Does the applicant meet all of the ordinance requirements?  No   Yes, after the steps above 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13



Permit Conditions 
 
A local government is authorized to impose conditions on the permit that relate to the purpose of the 
ordinance.  Conditions must be reasonable, and to the extent, practicable and measurable.  Conditions 
may limit the permit’s duration, transfer, or renewal. 
List conditions imposed on the permit:  
 
1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes an office use in a M-2, General Manufacturing District as shown 

in the attached site plan.  
Substantial Evidence:  The Zoning Ordinance states that office uses in M-2, General Manufacturing 
District are only allowed if reviewed and approved in accordance with the CUP review procedures. 
 

2. The applicant shall enter into a Development Agreement with the City of Beloit.  The Development 
Agreement shall outline the applicant’s responsibilities with respect to abandoning, relocating, 
extending, and/or constructing public facilities and infrastructure as necessary to accommodate this 
project. 
Substantial Evidence: The City requires a Development Agreement for all public improvements so 
that proper measures are in place to ensure the work is completed to City specifications.   

 
3. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan 

Commission and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Community Development 
Director may approve minor changes administratively 
Substantial Evidence:  Standardized condition to establish a process for future changes. 

 
Decision:  Based on the findings of fact, conclusions of law, and the record in this matter, the permit is: 
 

Approved, with the conditions stated above 
Denied, for the following reasons: 

14



 
15



 

Location Map  
 
 

 

16



 
17



 

 
 

 

18



 

 

19



 

 

20



 
 

21



 
22



 

  
 

 CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 
 Office: 608/364-6700 • Fax: 608/364-6609 
 www.beloitwi.gov 
 Equal Opportunity Employer 

 
NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 

 
February 6, 2023 

 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
EUA on behalf of ABC Supply Co. has applied for a Conditional Use Permit to allow an office use 
in a M-2, General Manufacturing District, for the properties located at: 

 
3 ABC Drive and 6 ABC Parkway 

 
The following public hearings will be held regarding this proposed Conditional Use Permit: 
 
City Plan Commission:  Wednesday, February 22, 2023, at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the 
matter can be heard in The Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. 
 
 

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND THESE HEARINGS. 
 

 
We are interested in your opinion. 

  
Anyone bringing handouts to the Plan Commission meeting must bring 10 copies and submit 
them to City staff before the meeting begins.   
 
You may also mail your comments to the attention of Hilary Rottmann at 100 State Street or 
via email to planning@beloitwi.gov. You may also call (608) 364-6708 to provide your 
comments over the phone.   
 

  
 
 
 
 

23

mailto:planning@beloitwi.gov


 

RESOLUTION 2023-010 
 

 APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW  
AN OFFICE USE IN A M-2, GENERAL MANUFACUTRING DISTIRCT  

FOR THE PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 3 ABC DRIVE AND 6 ABC PARKWAY 
 

WHEREAS, EUA on behalf of American Builders and Contractors (ABC) Supply Company 
Inc., has applied for a Conditional Use Permit to allow an office use in a M-2, General 
Manufacturing District, for the properties at 3 ABC Drive and 6 ABC Parkway, having been 
considered by the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit, Wisconsin at a public hearing held for 
that purpose and due notice of said hearing having been given by publication as appears by the 
Proof of Publication on file in the office of the City Clerk. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit, Rock 
County, Wisconsin does hereby grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow an office use in a M-2, 
General Manufacturing District, for the properties at 3 ABC Drive and 6 ABC Parkway, based upon 
the substantial evidence described in the Findings of Fact and Conditional Use Decision Form for 
Plan Commission which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, for the 
following described premises: 
 

Part of Lot 3, ABC Industrial Park Subdivision, according to the plat thereof recorded 
September 24, 1999 in Volume 32 of Plats, Page 466 as Document No. 1435827, in the 
City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin and Part of Lot 1 of a Certified Survey Map 
Document Number 2134231 as recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Rock 
County, Wisconsin, on August 19, 2019, in Volume 39 of Certified Survey Maps, Pages 465 
to 471, said Certified Survey Map being a Redivision of Lot 4 and Part of Lot 5 of ABC 
Industrial Park Subdivision, Part of vacated Lawton Avenue, and Part of vacated Out-Lot 
C of Certified Survey Map as Document No. 1250451, being situated in Part of the 
Southwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 25 and Part of the Northwest 
Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of Section 36, Township 1 North, Range 12 East of the 
Fourth Principal Meridian, in the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin, more particularly 
described as follows:  Beginning at the Northeast corner of said Lot 1 in Certified Survey 
Map Document Number 2134231; thence South 01 degrees 34 minutes 55 seconds West 
along the east line of said Lot 1, a distance of 590.16 feet; thence North 88 degrees 25 
minutes 05 seconds West, a distance of 160.21 feet; thence North 01 degrees 34 minutes 
55 seconds East, a distance of 835.25 feet; thence North 88 degrees 25 minutes 05 
seconds West, a distance of 121.87 feet to the west line of said Lot 3 in ABC Industrial 
Park Subdivision; thence North 32 degrees 31 minutes 38 seconds East along the west line 
of said Lot 3 in ABC Industrial Park Subdivision, a distance of 82.71 feet to a point on a 
curve; thence Southeasterly along the north line of said Lot 3 in ABC Industrial Park 
Subdivision on a curve concave to the southwest having a radius of 134.00 feet, an arc 
length of 332.05 feet, a chord bearing South 69 degrees 24 minutes 11 seconds East, and 
a chord length of 253.38 feet; thence South 01 degrees 34 minutes 55 seconds West along 
the east line of said Lot 3 in ABC Industrial Park Subdivision, a distance of 233.47 feet to 

24



 

the Point of Beginning, containing 159,150 sq. ft (3.65 acres), more or less. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the applicant is formally advised of the following additional 
ordinance requirements: 

 
1. The applicant shall obtain an Architectural Review Certificate, Certificate of Zoning 

Compliance, and Building Permit prior to beginning construction. 
2. In accordance with Section 8-103 of the Zoning Ordinance, the applicant shall provide 

access to at least one off-street parking stall per 250 square feet of office space. An 
updated off-street parking plan for the ABC Campus must be submitted and reviewed 
during site plan review to ensure adequate parking throughout the ABC Supply campus. 

3. In accordance with Section 2-506 of the Zoning Ordinance, the applicant shall have twelve 
(12) months from the date of CUP issuance to secure a Building Permit to carry out the 
proposed improvements, or the CUP shall lapse and be of no further effect. 
 

As a condition of granting the Conditional Use Permit, the Plan Commission does hereby stipulate 
the following conditions and restrictions upon the Conditional Use, which are hereby deemed 
necessary for the public interest: 

 
1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes an office use in a M-2, General Manufacturing 

District as shown in the attached site plan. 
2. The applicant shall enter into a Development Agreement with the City of Beloit.  The 

Development Agreement shall outline the applicant’s responsibilities with respect to 
abandoning, relocating, extending, and/or constructing public facilities and infrastructure 
as necessary to accommodate this project. 

3. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by 
the Plan Commission and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The 
Community Development Director may approve minor changes administratively. 

 
Adopted this 22nd day of February, 2023. 

 
PLAN COMMISSION 

 
  _ 
 Mike Ramsden, Chairperson 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
Julie Christensen 
Community Development Director 

 
 

25



  

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  February 22, 2023 

Agenda Item:  3.b. 

File Number:  SOE-2023-02 

General Information 
 
Applicant:  Matt Stried of JNB Signs Rock-Walworth Head Start Rock-Walworth Head Start 
Owner:  Wisconsin Rock-Walworth Comprehensive Family Services, Inc. 
Address/Location:  1221 Henry Avenue  
Applicant’s Request: Exception to Section 30.17(2)(b)(4) of the Outdoor Sign Regulations to 
allow an Electronic Variable Message (EVM) sign to exceed four feet in height. 
 
Staff Analysis 
 
Request Details:  Matt Stried of JNB Signs on behalf of Wisconsin Rock-Walworth Comprehensive 
Family Services, Inc. (Rock-Walworth Head Start) has filed an application for an exception to 
Section 30.17(2)(b)(4) of the Outdoor Sign Regulations to install a ground-mounted EVM sign that 
exceeds four feet in height. Section 30.17(2)(b)(4) indicates that EVM signs that do not display 
time, temperature and/or date shall not exceed 4 feet in height.  Section 30.03 of the Sign 
Ordinance defines height as the distance measured vertically to the highest point of an outdoor 
sign from grade.  
 
Background: 1221 Henry Avenue is zoned PLI, Public Lands and Institutions District and is home 
to Beloit Head Start / Early Head Start. They would like to update their existing cabinet and letter 
board signage with a new 20.93 square-foot double sided cabinet sign and a 19.08 square-foot 
double sided EVM sign on the existing posts.  
 
EVM Signs are divided into two categories in the Outdoor Sign Regulations:  EVM signs that only 
display time, temperature, and/or date and EVM signs that do not display time temperature 
and/or date. The proposed sign will display other types of messages, and therefore, falls into 
Section 30.17(2)(b) where signs cannot exceed four feet in height. The signage, as proposed, 
would exceed the four-foot height restriction.  
 
Public Notice and Comments Received: Section 30.48 of the Outdoor Sign Regulations requires 
that public notices be sent by mail to all property owners within 100 feet of the property.  32 
notices went out to the adjacent property owners. No comments have been received as of the 
writing of this staff report. 
 
Applicant’s Hardship Argument:  According to the applicant, mounting the EVM four feet from 
grade will greatly reduce its visibility. Mounting the EVM this low to the ground will subject the 
sign to be covered by snow in the winter and expose it to damage in the summer from lawn 

26



  

maintenance equipment. Increasing the size of the cabinet will greatly increase the cost of the 
overall sign.  
 
Exception Standards:  Section 30.48(2) of the Sign Ordinance outlines standards for granting an 
exception.  The Ordinance states that the Plan Commission may grant an exception if it 
determines that: 
 
a. Compliance with the strict letter of the Sign Ordinance would create an economic hardship by 

either unreasonably restricting an on-premises sign owner from advertising a business or 
rendering conformity with such regulations unnecessarily burdensome upon an owner of an 
on-premises sign. 
• This site does not have topographical conditions that are different than surrounding 

properties, nor does compliance with the Ordinance unreasonably restrict advertising.  
Staff does not believe that complying with the sign ordinance would create an economic 
hardship for the organization.   

 
b. The hardship is not self-created. 

• Staff believes the hardship is self-created. There are options on-site to relocate and/or 
reconfigure or lower the EVMs to comply with the Outdoor Sign Regulations, install an 
alternative type of sign on the existing poles, or install an EVM as a wall sign.  

 
c. The exception will not undermine the purpose of the Sign Ordinance or the public interest. 

• The proposed signage is located in a residential area, this type of sign also takes away 
from the character of the neighborhood.  Staff believes the exception will undermine 
the purpose of the Sign Ordinance and the public interest.   

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends denial of an exception to Section 
30.17(2)(b)(4) of the Outdoor Sign Regulations (the “Sign Ordinance”) to install a double sided 
19.08 square-foot Electronic Variable Message sign which exceed four feet in height at the 
property located at 1221 Henry Avenue, based on the above Findings of Fact.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Location Map, Sign Renderings, Photos, Application, Public Notice, and 
Resolution. 

27



  28



  

 
 Location of Existing Sign 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Location of 
Existing Sign 

29



  

 

 
 
 

30



  

 
 

31



  
32



  

 
 

 CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 
 Office: 608/364-6700 • Fax: 608/364-6609 
 www.beloitwi.gov 
 Equal Opportunity Employer 

 
NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 

 
February 6, 2023 

 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
JNB Signs on behalf of Rock-Walworth Head Start & Early Head Star has filed an application for 
an exception to Section 30.17(2)(b)(4) of the Outdoor Sign Regulations to install a ground mounted 
EVM sign that exceeds four feet in height located at: 

1221 Henry Avenue 

The following public hearing will be held regarding the proposed exception: 

 
City Plan Commission: Wednesday, February 22, 2023, at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the 
matter can be heard in The Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. 
 

We are interested in your opinion. 
 

  
Anyone bringing handouts to the Plan Commission meeting must bring 10 copies and submit 
them to City staff before the meeting begins.  You may also mail your comments to the 
attention of Hilary Rottmann at 100 State Street or via email to planning@beloitwi.gov. You 
may also call (608) 364-6708 to provide your comments over the phone. 
 

33

mailto:planning@beloitwi.gov


  

    
WAXLER JR, JOHN C 

WAXLER, SUSAN 
1841 SHORE DR 

BELOIT WI 53511-5536 
 

 OBSIDIAN ONYX MANAGEMENT 
LLC SLATE SERIES 

1658 N MILWAUKEE AVE #100-
8017 

CHICAGO IL 60647 
 

 VAN RIPER, DARLENE 
1772 PORTER AVE 
BELOIT WI 53511 

FLORES, JESUS M 
FLORES, PENNY L 

1901 NELSON AVE 
BELOIT WI 53511 

 

 STALSBERG, JULIE RAYNONA 
1838 DEWEY AVE 
BELOIT WI 53511 

 

 PONCE, SOFIO L 
1402 HENRY AVE 
BELOIT WI 53511 

HYDE, ROBERT 
HYDE, GERALD L 

PO BOX 172 
BELOIT WI 53512 

 

 FAIRCLOTH, COLUMBUS W 
FAIRCLOTH, LILLIE E 

1021 OAK ST 
BELOIT WI 53511 

 TOWNSEND, SHAWN D 
TOWNSEND, AZALEA 
1457 RIDGEWAY ST 

BELOIT WI 53511 
 AZR FINANCIAL INC 

616 S MAIN ST 
JANESVILLE WI 53545 

 

 ANDREW MILNER RENTALS LLC 
PO BOX 1161 

BELOIT WI 53512 
 

 ROJAS MARQUEZ, RAMIRO 
2145 E MILWAUKEE ST 
JANESVILLE WI 53545 

MENDOZA, FERMIN 
1880 DEWEY AVE 
BELOIT WI 53511 

 

 LONG, JOYCE A 
1820 DEWEY AVE 
BELOIT WI 53511 

 SHOLES, JASON & AMY 
1819 PORTER AVE 

BELOIT WI 53511-3644 
 TURNER, AARON 

TURNER, CAROLYN 
1868 DEWEY AVE 
BELOIT WI 53511 

 

 ANTHONY MEYER 
PROPERTIES LLC 

3469 BEE LN 
BELOIT WI  53511-5661 

 

 HUEBBE, GREGORY 
6102 E COUNTY LINE RD 

MILTON WI 53563 

SIMPLOT, TOMMY J 
1864 DEWEY AVE 
BELOIT WI 53511 

 
 

 HANSEN, JOSEPH C & JEANETTE E 
2516 CLIFCORN DR 
BELOIT WI 53511 

 

 DELATORRE, OSCAR 
1831 PORTER AVE 
BELOIT WI 53511 

 CASIQUE, MARIBEL NORIA 
1609 SUN VALLEY DR 

BELOIT WI 53511 
 

 GARCIA VENANCIO, JESUS 
1117 HENRY AVE 

BELOIT WI 53511 

 JIMENEZ, RAMON 
1837 PORTER AVE 
BELOIT WI 53511 

 ORTEGA, JORGE 
917 GARFIELD AVE 
BELOIT WI 53511 

 MAUEL, RUTH 
2624 WHITE OAKS CT 

BELOIT WI 53511-2359 

 FESTI, SCOTT A 
1224 COPELAND AVE 

BELOIT WI 53511 
 ROMERO PATENA, JESUS 

ARROYO, AURELIA 
1844 DEWEY AVE 
BELOIT WI 53511 

 

 BAEZ, GUILLERMO 
GARCIA, ZOILA 

1770 DEWEY AVE 
BELOIT WI 53511 

 
 

 MARSHALL, VIRGIL J 
1849 PORTER AVE 
BELOIT WI 53511 

 
BECERRA, GILBERTO 
1855 PORTER AVE 
BELOIT WI 53511 

 

 HORTON, DWIGHT D 
  PO BOX 892 

BELOIT WI 53511 
 

  

34



 

RESOLUTION 2023-009 
 

DENYING AN EXCEPTION TO SECTION 30.17(2)(B)(4) OF THE  
OUTDOOR SIGN REGULATIONS FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1221 HENRY AVENUE  

 
WHEREAS, the application of JNB Signs for an exception to Section 30.17(2)(b)(4) of the 

Outdoor Sign Regulations (the “Sign Ordinance”) to install a double sided 19.08 square-foot 
Electronic Variable Message sign which exceeds four feet in height at the property located at 
1221 Henry Avenue, having been considered by the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit, 
Wisconsin at a public hearing held for that purpose, and 
 

WHEREAS, the application as submitted does not meet the criteria for granting an 
exception as required by Section 30.48(2) of the Outdoor Sign Regulations. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, that the Plan Commission of the City of 

Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin does hereby deny an exception to Section 30.17(2)(b)(4) of the 
Outdoor Sign Regulations (the “Sign Ordinance”) to install a double sided 19.08 square-foot 
Electronic Variable Message sign which exceeds four feet in height at the property located at 
1221 Henry Avenue in the City of Beloit, for the following described premises: 

 
That piece or parcel of land located in the North 1/2 of Section 25, Township 1 North, Range 12 East of the 
4th Principal Meridian, lying and being in said City of Beloit and described as follows: Commencing at the 
intersection of the East line of Dewey Avenue and the North line of Henry Avenue, extended Easterly; 
thence Easterly along said North line of Henry Avenue extended, to the intersection thereof with the West 
line of Porter Avenue extended, as on the 19tb day of April, 1929, thence Northerly along the said West line 
of Porter Avenue to the intersection thereof with the center line of Bayliss Avenue extended Easterly; 
thence Westerly along said extended center line of Bayliss Avenue to the intersection thereof with East line 
of Dewey Avenue; thence Southerly along said East line of Dewey Avenue to the place of beginning, EXCEPT 
the South 6 feet thereof; FURTHER EXCEPTING therefrom Lot 1 Certified Survey Map of part of the NW ¼ 
of the NE ¼ of Section 25, T. 1N., R.12E., of the 4th P.M., City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin, said Certified 
Survey Map being recorded January 12, 1990 in Volume 4, Pages 219 to 221 of Certified Survey Maps of 
Rock County, Wisconsin as Doc�ment #1105246; also being recorded on Card 422, Images 100-102. (Also 
Known As 1221 Henry Avenue).  Containing 9.3 Acres, more or less 

 
Adopted this 22nd day of February, 2023. 
 

PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
  
Mike Ramsden, Chairperson 

 
ATTEST: 
 
   
Julie Christensen 
Community Development Director 

35



 

RESOLUTION 2023-009 
 

APPROVING AN EXCEPTION TO SECTION 30.17(2)(B)(4) OF THE  
OUTDOOR SIGN REGULATIONS FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1221 HENRY AVENUE  

 
WHEREAS, the application of JNB Signs for an exception to Section 30.17(2)(b)(4) of the 

Outdoor Sign Regulations (the “Sign Ordinance”) to install a double sided 19.08 square-foot 
Electronic Variable Message sign which exceeds four feet in height at the property located at 
1221 Henry Avenue, having been considered by the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit, 
Wisconsin at a public hearing held for that purpose, and 
 

WHEREAS, the application as submitted meets the criteria for granting an exception as 
required by Section 30.48(2) of the Outdoor Sign Regulations. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, that the Plan Commission of the City of 
Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin does hereby approve an exception to Section 30.17(2)(b)(4) of 
the Outdoor Sign Regulations (the “Sign Ordinance”) to install a double sided 19.08 square-foot 
Electronic Variable Message sign which exceeds four feet in height at the property located at 
1221 Henry Avenue in the City of Beloit, for the following described premises: 

 
That piece or parcel of land located in the North 1/2 of Section 25, Township 1 North, Range 12 East of the 
4th Principal Meridian, lying and being in said City of Beloit and described as follows: Commencing at the 
intersection of the East line of Dewey Avenue and the North line of Henry Avenue, extended Easterly; 
thence Easterly along said North line of Henry Avenue extended, to the intersection thereof with the West 
line of Porter Avenue extended, as on the 19tb day of April, 1929, thence Northerly along the said West line 
of Porter Avenue to the intersection thereof with the center line of Bayliss Avenue extended Easterly; 
thence Westerly along said extended center line of Bayliss Avenue to the intersection thereof with East line 
of Dewey Avenue; thence Southerly along said East line of Dewey Avenue to the place of beginning, EXCEPT 
the South 6 feet thereof; FURTHER EXCEPTING therefrom Lot 1 Certified Survey Map of part of the NW ¼ 
of the NE ¼ of Section 25, T. 1N., R.12E., of the 4th P.M., City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin, said Certified 
Survey Map being recorded January 12, 1990 in Volume 4, Pages 219 to 221 of Certified Survey Maps of 
Rock County, Wisconsin as Doc�ment #1105246; also being recorded on Card 422, Images 100-102. (Also 
Known As 1221 Henry Avenue).  Containing 9.3 Acres, more or less 

 
 

This exception is subject to the following conditions: 
1. This approval authorizes the installation of a double sided 19.08 square-foot Electronic 

Variable Message sign which exceeds four feet in height for the property located at 1221 
Henry Avenue.  

2. An Architectural Review Certificate and Sign Permit are required for all approved signs. 
3. Any major changes in the adopted conditions of this Sign Ordinance Exception shall be 

approved by the Plan Commission. The Community Development Director may approve 
minor changes administratively. 

 

36



 

Adopted this 22nd day of February, 2023. 
  

PLAN COMMISSION 
 

  
Mike Ramsden, Chairman 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
Julie Christensen 
Community Development Director 

37



  

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  February 22, 2023 
 
Agenda Item:  4.a. 
 
File Number:  CSM-2023-04 

General Information 

Applicant:  Fehr Graham  
Owner: ABC Supply Company  
Address/Location:  3 ABC Drive, 4 ABC Drive and 6 ABC Parkway 
Applicant’s Request: Three-Lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) 
 
Staff Analysis 

Background Info:  Fehr Graham, on behalf of ABC Supply Company, has submitted an Application for Review of 
a Minor Subdivision for a three-lot CSM for the properties located at 3 ABC Drive, 4 ABC Drive, and 6 ABC 
Parkway to reconfigure lot lines for the construction of a new training facility.  
 
CSM Details:  The intent of the proposed CSM is to reconfigure the three lots contained in the 11.78-acre area 
of land. Lot 1 is proposed to be 3.65 acres in area with an existing warehouse and road frontage on ABC Drive 
and ABC Parkway. Lot 2 is proposed to be 4.59 acres in area with road frontage on Prince Hall Drive. The land 
use is currently surface parking but is the proposed location of the new training facility. Lot 3 is proposed to be 
3.47 acres with an existing office building and surface parking.  Lot 3 includes the recently constructed ABC office 
building and has road frontage on three sides of the lot along ABC Drive, Lawton Avenue, and Prince Hall Drive. 
All three lots are zoned M-2, General Manufacturing, but a portion of 3 ABC Drive is also zoned C-1, Office 
District.  
 
Review Agent Comments:  The following comments were received from the review agents.  
 
Assessment: The street labels for ABC Drive and ABC Parkway need to be switched.  
 
AT&T Comments: Cable is buried across the middle of the property from east to west.  
 
Engineering: The CSM does not have the watermain easement drawn where the new watermain will be 
installed. The only watermain easement is at the far south end. The Conditional Use Permit drawings show a 
10-foot watermain easement. The easement will need to be at least 20 feet, with the main offset to one side. 
  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached three-Lot CSM for the land 
located at 3 ABC Drive, 4 ABC Drive, and 6 ABC Parkway, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The final CSM shall include a new watermain easement as determined by the City Engineer.  
2. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one year of approval and 

a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Location Map, Proposed CSM, Application, and Resolution. 

38



  

 
 
 

39



  

 
 

Updated aerial with demolition complete   
 

40



   

41



   

 

42



   

 

43



    
44



   

RESOLUTION 23-008 
 

APPROVING A THREE-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP FOR  
THE PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 3 ABC DRIVE, 4 ABC DRIVE AND 6 ABC PARKWAY 

 
WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit 

entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit 
to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor subdivision of land within the jurisdiction of the 
City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the attached three-lot Certified Survey Map for the properties located at 3 ABC Drive, 
4 ABC Drive, and 6 ABC Parkway, containing 11.78 acres, is located within the jurisdiction of the City of 
Beloit; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached three-lot 
Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 
 

LOT 3 AND PART OF LOT 5, ABC INDUSTRIAL PARK SUBDIVISON, AND LOT 1 OF C.S.M. 39-645, 
ALL BEING PART OF THE SE ¼ OF SECTION 26 & PART OF THE SW ¼ OF SECTION 25, TOWN 1 
NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST, CITY OF BELOIT, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit does hereby 

conditionally approve the attached three-lot Certified Survey Map for the properties located at 3 ABC 
Drive, 4 ABC Drive, and 6 ABC Parkway, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The final CSM shall include a new watermain easement as determined by the City Engineer.  
2. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one year of 

approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 
 
Adopted this 22nd day of February, 2023. 
 
 

PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
  _ 
 Mike Ramsden, Chairperson 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
Julie Christensen 
Community Development Director 
 

45


	Plan Commission Agenda
	2023-1207 - Attachment
	2023-1212 - Attachment
	2023-1213 - Attachment
	2023-1208 - Attachment

